
t

WHITE OAK CITY COUNCIL

SPECIAL MEETING

WHITE OAK CITY HALL

MAY 15, 2013

5: 00 P. M.      i
r

MEMBERS PRESENT  : Mayor Rick May, Mayor Pro-Tem Barbara Ray Lance Noll, Kyle Kutch,
Charlie Owens, Kelly Mitchell

STAFF PRESENT Charlie Smith, Sherry Roberts, Billy Morgan, Tracey Fears, Wendell
Basham, Terry Roach,  Debbie Sadler,  Nathan Holder,  Dale Tuttle,

Colton Apple, Jamie Guida, Joe Theriot.

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor May called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. Mayor May led both the invocation and Pledge
of Allegiance.

CONSENT AGENDA

A.  Review of Financials for April 2013.

B.  Consider and/or approve City Council minutes from April 9, 2013.
C.  Consider and/or approve WOEDCO minutes from February 26th and April 23, 2013.

Motion to approve made by Councilmember Noll, seconded by Councilmember Kutch. Carried
unanimously.

CITIZEN COMMENTS

Dan Denton-213 Drake Drive. Spoke to the Council regarding his neighbor at the end of Drake
Drive. He explained his neighbor has erected a barricade which prevents him from mail delivery
and trash service. It is his belief the City would be of interest to this because of the inability of
emergency services to reach the property. A judgment will soon be approved to give his easement
back but this will not resolve the issue of the last bit of property still hindered. His neighbor would
like to give an easement to City for the City to assume the maintenance responsibility. If there were
school-aged children there, the City would have to put a road in for the school bus. There is an old
cattle guard at the end of the road, which is used publicly and he believes it is a public safety issue
as well. Mr. Denton stated his neighbor is such a belligerent person and has made it incapable to
work with him. Because of the personal threats against him from his neighbor, he has to go through

a judge or the police to get anything done. The neighbor has been issued a temporary restraining
order to remove the wall immediately and Mr. Denton expressed his fear of his neighbor. Because
of the unresolved issue with the City, the neighbor has turned his anger towards Mr. Denton. The
problem is the City ordinance that says residents must improve the street with curbs and gutters
before the City will take it over. He feels there needs to be a variance for the ordinance to help
resolve this problem.

Rachel Hobbs-404 Owens Rd.  Ms.  Hobbs explained she lives off of George Richey.  She

presented a petition signed by nine residents on Owens Rd., which requests the City to reinstate
maintenance of the road because the road is only fixed temporarily with potholes being filled. She

City Council Special Minutes
May 15, 2013

Page 1



i
E

I
t

i

i

acknowledged that research has been done and no one knows why maintenance is no longer
being done. She stated her family lives at the end of the road and this is a continuous problem. Ms.
Hobbs also stated that everyone on the road maintains and takes pride in their homes. She did
state that the U. S. Postal Service delivers mail to their home.

i

Jewel Brown- 1604 Owens Rd., Ms. Brown stated her concern is the same as Ms. Hobbs; however

she lives closer to George Richey than Rachel. She explained she has called a number of times for
something to be done but the only thing done is ground up tar is brought in from other places. Then
the first time there is rain, it comes out. The last time she called, something different was used
which lasted a little longer. She asked the Council why the road cannot be repaired

OATH OF OFFICE for newly elected City Councilmembers.

Mayor May issued Oaths of Office to Dr. Barbara Ray, Lance Noll, and Kyle Kutch.

CONSIDERATION & APPOINTMENT of Mayor Pro-Tem.

Mayor May stated that he recommends Dr. Barbara Ray as Mayor Pro-tem. Councilmember Kutch
made motion,  Councilmember Owens seconded.  Carried by all,  with Mayor Pro-Tem Ray
abstaining.

PRESENTATION of Proclamation recognizing May 2013 for Motorcycle Safety Awareness Month.

Mayor May explained that this is an annual proclamation that is presented every May. He stated
there were some folks here for the presentation. Mayor May then asked the members to step
forward and he read proclamation.

CONSIDER AND/OR APPROVE Baseball/ Softball Contracts

City Coordinator Charlie Smith explained he received a check with the baseball contract for over
2,200.  No check was received with softball contract.  Councilmember Owens questioned the

number of outsiders that would be playing. Mr. Smith answered that the City charges by child that
are playing in the association. The City is given a list of enrollment so it is known how many
children are playing. The City receives $ 10 per child and $ 5 for siblings. Councilmember Owens

questioned that this all pertains to kids from White Oak. Mayor May answered yes. Councilmember
Mitchell asked if this contract had anything to do with the fall ball bunch. Mayor May answered no.
Councilmember Mitchell questioned what " as well as any and all hook-up charges mean" in the
contract. He wanted verification that this does not mean for vendor trailers that are brought in and

hooked up. Tracey Fears stated this is not what this means. Councilmember Mitchell explained this
had previously been the case and he had to go down and do electric work because the system had
been overloaded. City Coordinator Smith stated he thought this was about water connections, etc.
Any outside vendors that wanted to do business would need to apply for a peddler's license.

Mayor May stated the way he reads# 9 of the contract is the baseball association is not responsible
for the water, electric, and sewer bill within the normal use of the fields. He does not think this is out

of the ordinary.

Mayor May explained the baseball association has laid down guidelines for the select teams to use
the field. The association wants at least 50% White Oak kids to be on a select team. These

guidelines are to prevent conflict on field usage.

City Council Special Minutes
May 15, 2013

Page 2



4

P

f

ttF
f

Councilmember Owens questioned if the City has a curfew on the fields. City Coordinator Smith
answered the fields follow the parks curfew, which is 11: 00 p.m. on weekends and 10:00 on
weekdays.

Mayor Pro-Tem Ray asked if these contracts are similar to those of the past. Councilmember
Mitchell and others answered there never has been a contract before. Mayor Pro-Tem Ray stated
the contract can be trusted since the city attorney drafted it and it was not his first time to draft one.

Councilmember Mitchell questioned even though this is a five-year contract, does the City have the
right to adjust the fees. Mayor May answered not for five years.

Councilmember Kutch questioned if there was an extension included.  City Coordinator Smith
stated the extension is automatic.

Motion to approve by Mayor Pro-Tem Ray, seconded by Councilmember Noll. Carried 3-2 with
Councilmember Mitchell and Councilmember Owens in opposition.

i
CONSIDER AND/OR APPROVE High School Baseball Field upgrade.  I

City Coordinator Smith passed out a map and an estimate of work from Hayes Engineering for the
project.

Mayor May explained this has taken awhile to get drawings and lots of thought process on how to
revamp the high school field. This has been talked about before and is not new subject. Mayor May
opined the high school baseball field desperately needs to be revamped. One of the concerns was
the cost. He stated the last time this was discussed, it was said they would try to get WOEDCO
and the school board involved. With the three entities partnered, it does not place an undue burden

on any one budget.  If one entity chooses not to do this, it is a dead issue. He believes the
community and kids deserve this. This type of facility would attract tournaments and playoff games.
It would be the only facility in East Texas like this. Tomorrow there is a huge playoff series that is
about to start between Hallsville and Whitehouse. If the City already had this facility, we would
have the opportunity to have these people here and would benefit the City economically.
Economics aside, the kids deserve better. Had you went down to the White Oak/Carlisle game,

there were close to 1, 000 people there for the game. They only have seating for 250 people.
Everyone else was in lawn chairs or standing up. The City and the kids deserve it and if each entity
will go together we can do it. Mayor May stated he is asking the City for $50,000 per year for five
years which is $ 250,000 per entity. WOEDCO has already voted for it with the contingency of the
City and school district joining. Last Friday, he and Charlie went to an attorney in Longview and
talked about creating a 501- c3 foundation to create the remaining $ 135,000 for this project. Mayor

May stated he will personally contribute $50,000 of his own money over the five-year period toward
this project. This would save each entity so much money to go in together to build something like
this.

Mayor Pro-Tem Ray stated that unfortunately she had not attended any games recently. She
asked what the usual attendance had been. Mayor May explained who is playing and what night.
He also stated if there was a nice facility where everyone had a nice place to go to, attendance
would increase. Mayor Pro-Tem Ray asked if admission had previously been charged. Mayor May
answered no, but there will be an admission charge with this. The City will own and operate the
facility and the school will be a partner. There will be a mutual decision on how funds are divided. It
will bring in a certain amount of revenue but this cannot be projected. It will bring in some revenue
which is better than not having any revenue and only an expense.

City Council Special Minutes
May 15, 2013

Page 3



Mayor Pro-Tern Ray questioned if the money from the concession stand will still go to the baseball
association. Mayor May stated this is a completely separate issue from the baseball association.
The association would be under contract with the City and school.

I

Councilmember Noll questioned if the City would have to hire the employees to run the gate,
concessions, and maintenance. Mayor May answered yes.

Councilmember Noll questioned how the facility will seat 200 people in left field.  Mayor May
explained the building of the space.

Councilmember Kutch questioned about parking spaces? Mayor May stated that only ten spaces
would be lost.

Mr. Mike Gilbert, White Oak School Superintendent stated from the school's standpoint, they would s
benefit from it. This discussion was held with the school board, but was not an action item. One
issue on the schools end is that it is a Title IX consideration and they would have to do something 4

similar for the softball facility for equality. As far as the field, he stated that he could not argue
against it. As a district, he stated they could not come close to this. This is something the school
board has expressed an interested in.

Councilmember Kutch asked when the project would begin. Mayor May stated he is prejudiced and
is very passionate about it. He wants to see White Oak kids have a nice place to play baseball and
wants proud citizens. The kids and the community deserve it. Mayor May stated this will be left as a
discussion item for tonight and will place it on the next agenda to give everyone time to look and

think on it. The school board will vote on it at their June meeting, the day before the next City
Council meeting.

Councilmember Kutch questioned how much time it would take to build. Mayor May stated that if
they could start construction on August 1st,  it could be finished by the end of February, rain
permitting. They would get the playing things done first in case it is not ready for next season.

Mayor May expressed his gratitude to WOEDCO Executive Director Debbie Sadler and the
WOEDCO board for their commitment. Councilmember Noll questioned if the facility would be
closed if the high school was not playing or practicing and will it be high school related only. Mayor
May answered it would be like what we have now. During the high school season, they would have
exclusive rights to the field. If select teams want to play off-season, the City can allow it.

Councilmember Mitchell asked if the foundation would be able to get money from Gregg County for
the project. City Coordinator Smith stated Judge Stoudt acted like we would, but no indication on
the amount. But Judge Stoudt did explain that if there was a foundation, it would make it easier on

the County to help with the project. Councilmember Mitchell stated that he would like to know how
much the County could provide before the City makes a decision. He also stated that budget
preparation time is coming up soon and this information would be helpful to know before the
budget process begins.

DISCUSSION regarding volunteer fire personnel and public works employees.

City Coordinator Smith explained there had been discussion regarding the fire department being
short-handed during the day. An option to remedy this problem could be to have the public works
employees join the volunteer fire department and utilize them during the day. After speaking to

City Council Special Minutes
May 15, 2013

Page 4



i

i

employees, all 11 employees were willing to participate. There would be an increase in their pay as
long as they kept up the volunteer fire department requirements. He stated he had discussions with
the state fire commission and the city attorney. There is not as big of a problem on weekends but x

during the week fire coverage is lacking. This would benefit the City and may return as an action
item for the next meeting.

is

Mayor May stated if it can pass all the legal issues, this would be a good asset to the City. It would s

benefit the fire chief to have help. This is still under research and once we get the legalities straight,
this will be an action item.

CONSIDER AND/OR APPROVE recommendation by Hayes Engineering,  Inc. for Acorn Trail

sewer line replacement.
I
I

City Coordinator Smith explained Thomas Utilities was the low bidder for  $ 15,000 and is f

recommended by Stan Hayes. This is a smaller company and runs only one crew.

Mayor Pro-Tem Ray questioned why the line is being relocated. Mr. Smith answered because it is
on the bottom of a creek and had flooded out.

Councilmember Noll made the motion to approve, seconded by Councilmember Mitchell. Carried
unanimously.

CONSIDER AND/OR APPROVE agreement for engineering services with Hayes Engineering, Inc.
for wastewater treatment plant upgrade.

City Coordinator Smith stated this is their standard agreement from Hayes Engineering and their
fees are $ 270,000 for the wastewater treatment plant project. This project will be paid by the 2013
Certificate of Obligation that was approved.

Councilmember Mitchell made motion to approve,  seconded by Councilmember Noll.  Carried
unanimously.

EXECUTIVE SESSION in accordance with Texas Government Code, Subchapter D,

Section 551. 074: Personnel Matters— Fire Marshal and Code Enforcement Positions

and job descriptions.

Section 551. 074:  Personnel Matters — Director of Public Works Position and job

description.

Section 551. 072: Real Property- The City Council may meet in closed session to
deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of one or more tracts of real

property, where such deliberations in open session would have a detrimental effect
on the City's position in negotiations with a third party.

Council exited open session and entered executive session at 6: 10 p.m.

RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION to Consider and/or Act upon any deliberation regarding:

Section 551. 074: Personnel Matters— Fire Marshal and Code Enforcement Positions

and job descriptions.

City Council Special Minutes
May 15, 2013

Page 5



a

i

Section 551. 074:  Personnel Matters — Director of Public Works Position and job

description.

Section 551. 072: Real Property- The City Council may meet in closed session to
deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of one or more tracts of real

property, where such deliberations in open session would have a detrimental effect

on the City's position in negotiations with a third party.
i

Council reconvened into open session at 6:44 p.m. and took no action.

CITY COORDINATOR ITEMS

A.  Update on 2013-2014 budget preparation

City Secretary Sherry Roberts sent out the annual capital asset request forms for
department heads and will update the Council on the requests in June.

ADJOURNMENT K

Councilmember Mitchell made the motion to adjourn at 6:58 p.m., seconded by Councilmember
Noll. Carried unanimously.      i

k

fi

Rick Way, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sher Ro'    s, T MC

City Secretary

City Council Special Minutes
May 15, 2013

Page 6

i


